1978

William T. Blodgett and Florence G. Blodgett, His Wife v. Joe Martsch, Betty Purcell, Aka Betty Purcell Martsch, Doyle Nease, Raco Car Wash Systems, Inc., A Utah Corporation, Wayne A. Ashworth, Trustee, Karl W. Tenney, Valley Bank and Trust Company, A Utah Banking Corporation, First Security Bank of Idaho, N.A., State of Utah, and John Does, 1-10 : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

Appellant seeks a reversal of the summary judgment
granted below against appellants in favor of the respondents.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

On October 20, 1977, the lower court granted summary
judgment in favor of respondents Joe Martsch, Wayne A. Ashworth,
Karl W. Tenney, and Valley Bank & Trust Company. On November 3,
1976, the lower court entered an order denying appellants' motion
to amend or alter judgment. On October 20, 1977, the lower court
granted summary judgment in favor of respondent State of Utah.

All remaining parties to the action were either dismissed without prejudice by appellants or judgment was taken against them. In the case of Doyle Nease and John Does 1 through 10, the parties were never served.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellants seek a finding of error in the lower court's granting of summary judgment as to the respondents Joe Martsch, Wayne A. Ashworth, Karl W. Tenney, Valley Bank & Trust Company, and the State of Utah and asks this Court to remand the case back to the lower court for a trial on the merits.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Prior to September 21, 1973, appellants were the owners in fee title of two contiguous parcels of ground in the South Salt Lake area near the Van Winkle Expressway. One parcel has been variously referred to in the pleadings as Parcel 1 or the car wash property. Subsequent to November 5, 1971, a car wash was erected on the said property. The other piece of property has been variously referred to as Parcel 2 or the grocery store property. The appellants had operated a grocery store business on the said parcel for many years. The two parcels were acquired by appellants at two separate times, the car wash property being acquired last.

On April 23, 1969, the appellants executed a trust deed with respondent Valley Bank & Trust Company covering the store property. This was pursuant to a promissory note in the amount of \$30,000. (Karl Tenney Deposition, Ex.P-6) In late 1971,

appellants entered into a lease with Raco Car Wash Systems and Betty Purcell, defendants below, covering the car wash property. The leasees proposed to erect a car wash on the property. This lease, by its terms, specified that the car wash property was to be subordinated to assist the lessees in obtaining financing for the construction of the car wash. The lease further provided that no other property belonging to appellants was to be included. (Edgar Throndsen Deposition, page 35, Exs. P-3 and P-13) Mr. Throndsen, testifying on behalf of the respondent bank, admitted that the terms of the lease with regard to subordination had been reviewed by the bank prior to the closing of the loan for the financing of the car wash construction. (Throndsen Deposition, pages 51, 52)

The respondent bank proceeded to prepare the loan documents for the financing of the car wash. All negotiations were accomplished through dealings between the respondent bank and officers and agents of Raco Car Wash. (Throndsen Deposition, pages 22-33) Appellants had been customers of the respondent bank for some period of time and were well known to the bank. (Throndsen Deposition, page 27) Nevertheless, the respondent bank made no contact with the Blodgetts regarding the loan prior to notifying them of the closing date, at which time the documents for the closing of the loan were in final form. The notification of closing came the same afternoon as the closing. (William Blodgett Deposition, pages 14-15)

On November 5, 1971, appellants were called to the

respondent bank for the purpose of executing various documents on the car wash loan. Although there is some controversy about exactly what happened and what was said at the closing, the facts must be taken in a light most favorable to the appellants. In that regard, appellants were not informed by any of respondent bank's agents or officials or by defendant Purcell, who was also in attendance, that any property other than that described in the lease and known as the car wash property was being encumbered by the trust deed and note. (Affidavit of William T. Blodgett and Florence G. Blodgett, dated May 17, 1977) They did know, however, that the lease with Raco Car Wash covered ingress and egress over the store property. (William Blodgett Deposition, page 29) At the time of the closing, appellant William Blodgett told the bank officer conducting the closing that he did not understand fully what he was signing and therefore asked for copies of all documents signed. Respondent bank failed to provide any copies except for mailing a copy of the note. (William Blodgett Deposition, page 17) Mrs. Blodgett could not read any of the documents because of an eye problem. (Florence Blodgett Deposition, pages 12-13)

Although the respondents now claim that the trust deed signed on November 5, 1971 by appellants includes the store property as well as the car wash property and that it was necessary to have the store property as additional security for the loan, there is no indication in the loan committee minutes of any discussion of additional security requirements. (Thronsdon

Deposition, Ex. P-14) Mr. Throndsen himself has no independent recollection that such was discussed by the committee. (Throndsen Deposition, pages 29-30)

On July 28, 1972, appellants prepaid some \$20,000 owing on the April 23, 1969 trust deed and note covering the store property. On September 28, 1973 respondent bank issued a reconveyance of the property signed by respondent Tenney, and cancelled the trust deed and note. (Karl Tenney Deposition, pages 51-52, 54-55 and Exs. P-6 and P-10) The bank accepted the money which was not due until 1974 without advising appellants that the store property was included as part of the trust deed then in default. (Tenney Deposition, page 65) Nor did the bank apply any of the \$20,000 to remedy the car wash loan default. It is nevertheless claimed by respondent bank that at the time of the prepayment, the bank fully knew that the trust deed covering the car wash loan included the store property. (Tenney Deposition, page 62)

The note executed on November 5, 1971 became overdue in early 1972 and notices to this effect were sent to Betty Purcell Wartsch on numerous occasions. (Tenney Deposition, pages 23-26) At the same time, the respondent bank indicated to the Blodgetts that they wanted to work with the Blodgetts to make certain that the Blodgetts did not lose out on their property. (Throndsen Deposition, page 56; Donald Sawaya Deposition, pages 18-20, Ex.

The trustee sale was noticed up for September 20, 1973

at which time respondent Ashworth conducted a sale of that property allegedly covered by the trust deed. Prior to the sale three notices were posted, only one of which was posted in the precinct where the property was located. (Russel Weaver Deposition, pages 7-10, Ex. P-1) The date, time and place of the same was for September, 20, 1973 at 10:00 a.m. and the sale was to be for cash at the time of the sale. In fact, the money was not transferred until September 21, 1973 at about 9:00 a.m. (Sawaya Deposition, pages 10-11, Ex. F) No postponement was given by public declaration as that is set forth in Utah Code Annotated §57-1-27.

The description of the property of the car wash as stated in the notice of sale and also as it appeared in the Daily Record as a published notice, describes the property as follows (after giving the starting point): "South 89 degrees 15'45" West 71.67 ft; North 0 degrees 20'50" East 0 degrees, 17'45" West 154 ft to Beginning." (Weaver Deposition, Exhibit P-2; Ashworth Deposition, Exhibit P-3) The true description of the car wash property is (after stating the point of beginning): "South 89 degrees 15'45" West 71.67 ft; North 0 degrees 20'50" East 154 ft; North 89 degrees 15'45" East 71.53 feet; South 0 degrees 17'45" West 154 ft. to Beginning." In other words, two courses of the metes and bounds description were left off and the description of the property to be sold was totally unclear, contrary to the requirements of Utah Code Annotated §57-1-25.

The purchaser at the sale was Betty Purcell Martsch

appearing either as an agent or a partner of respondent Joe Martsch (Pace Deposition, pages 4-8; Sawaya Deposition, pages 7-11). Respondent Joe Martsch was the common law husband of Betty Purcell Martsch and was involved in business dealings with her. At one time he was a director of Raco Car Wash Company. (Betty Purcell Martsch Deposition, pages 6, 58-59, 70; Raco Car Wash's and Betty Purcell Martsch's answers to amended complaint) Subsequent to the trustee sale, the car wash property was sold to the State of Utah for a sum which exceeded the amount paid by Martsch at the trustee sale. The details of the sale to the State were worked out by Betty Purcell Martsch. (Betty Purcell Martsch Deposition, pages 82-84)

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE LOWER COURT DID NOT APPLY THE PROPER STANDARD FOR DETERMINING THE SUMMARY JUDGMENT

It is a clear principle in this State that in deciding whether to grant a summary judgment, the facts must be taken in a light most favorable to the party against whom the judgment is sought. As this Court has said recently, where a motion for summary judgment is granted "the party moved against is being defeated without the privilege of trial.." Rich v. McGovern, 551 P.2d 1266, 1267 (Utah 1976). Hence a court should be careful to

make certain that if a plaintiff's contentions and proposals as to proof of material facts, if resolved in his favor, would entitle him to prevail, . . . the motion for summary judgment should be denied and a trial should be had for the purpose of resolving the disputed issues of fact and determining the rights of the parties." Id. at 1267

In this case, it is clear that the lower court did not follow the proper rule. The summary judgment signed by the lower court in favor of respondents Joe Martsch, Wayne Ashworth, Karl Tenney and Valley Bank & Trust on its face makes statements completely contrary to the evidence taken in a light most favorable to the appellants.

For example, the summary judgment states that respondents made no representations to the plaintiffs that were false or incorrect. This is contradicted by numerous statements made by respondents or their officers in depositions taken in this case. As one example, appellants were required to sign the trust note as co-makers although it was represented to them that they were signing "on a standby basis". (William Blodgett Deposition, page 38) The officer in charge of the closing admitted he could see no basis for the appellants to sign the note at all. (Thronsdon Deposition, page 51) Therefore, with regard to the note, respondent bank misrepresented two significant things, namely that the Blodgetts had to sign at all and that they were only signing on a "standby" basis, when in fact, the note on its face shows the Blodgetts as co-signers.

the note.

One of the most significant misrepresentations is the inclusion in the trust deed signed by the Blodgetts on November 1, 1971 of more property than the car wash property. Respondent bank alleged that the documents were prepared in accordance with the agreement and understanding of the parties. The respondent bank had full knowledge of the contents of the lease between the Blodgetts and Raco Car Wash. That lease specifically provided for no other property to be subordinated by the Blodgetts than the car wash property. The inclusion in the trust deed of the grocery store property was therefore a misrepresentation that the respondent bank was handling the matter in accord with the agreement.

Respondent Tenney contacted the appellants on a number of occasions and assured them that respondent bank was willing to eliminate the interest of Betty Purcell and Raco Car Wash on the car wash property. In fact, the bank's only apparent intention was to sell the property at trustee's sale and to get the amount of its note paid out of that sale without any regard to the interest of the Blodgetts. Even as late as August 17, 1973, a letter from counsel for respondent Ashworth to counsel for appellants stated: "It is the banks [sic] intention to pursue the matter to the extent of terminating Mrs. Purcell's interest in the above referred to property." (Sawaya Deposition, Exhibit

Both respondents bank and Tenney on various occasions

had dealings with the Blodgetts after the trust deed note was in default, but at no time did they tell appellants of any claim the bank had to the grocery store property. If the respondents Tenney and bank really thought, as they apparently claim now, that the grocery store property was included in the trust deed, they misrepresented their dealings with the Blodgetts by making no reference at all to the grocery store property as being included in the trust deed or in any way being in jeopardy of default.

The respondents bank and Tenney accepted a prepayment covering the entire amount remaining due on the first trust note on the store property. The reconveyance was issued a few days after the trustee sale without any reference to any second trust deed or obligation. By accepting the money as a prepayment, but neither applying it towards any default on the note with Raco Car Wash nor informing the Blodgetts that the default on the Raco note affected in any way the store property, the respondents bank and Tenney withheld information from the Blodgetts, constituting a misrepresentation of the facts.

If for no other reason than the misrepresentations noted above, the summary judgment granted in favor of respondents Tenney and bank should be reversed. However, as will be discussed below, there are additional reasons why the summary judgment should be reversed as to all parties.

POINT II

RESPONDENT MARTSCH WAS NOT A BONA FIDE PURCHASE FOR VALUE

At no time prior to the trustee sale did respondent Martsch ever have any personal dealings with respondents bank, Penney, Ashworth or State of Utah. All of his dealings were through Betty Purcell Martsch, the owner and moving force behind Taco Car Wash, which company had caused the default of the trust note in the first place. Betty Purcell Martsch had had dealings with respondent bank in setting up the trust note and deed and had dealings with the Blodgetts in arranging for the lease and subordination of the car wash property. Therefore, at the time of the trustee's sale, Betty Purcell Martsch, bidding in at the trustee's sale in the name of Joe Martsch, either knew that the trust deed covered only the car wash property or knew that it was not the intention nor the understanding of the Blodgetts that the store property was included in the sale. Immediately after the sale, Mrs. Martsch made claim to the store property and sent notices to the store property tenants that Joe Martsch was the new owner. She also began negotiations to sell part of the property to the State. (Purcell Deposition, pages 79-83)

As indicated by the above, Joe Martsch was put on notice of all of the infirmities in the sale by the activities of his agent and wife, Mrs. Martsch. Specifically he knew that the trust deed either did not intend to convey the grocery store

property, or, if it did, that it was an error for it to be so included and should not have been considered the subject of the trustee's sale.

It is further apparent that, contrary to the statement made in the order of summary judgment granted by the lower court on September 24, 1976, respondent Joe Martsch through his agent made misrepresentations to appellants. Therefore, the summary judgment should be reversed and the matter be allowed to proceed to trial on its merits.

POINT III

THERE IS EVIDENCE RESPONDENTS BANK, TENNEY AND ASHWORTH BREACHED THEIR FIDUCIARY DUTY TO APPELLANTS

Respondents bank, Tenney, and Ashworth, held positions of fiduciary responsibility to the appellants. Fiduciary duties were created with respondents bank and Tenney because of the close relationship they had had with the appellants. The testimony is abundantly clear that appellants maintained a long banking relationship with the bank and with Mr. Tenney, and that appellants trusted the bank and Mr. Tenney completely. Hence, with regard to the preparation of the original trust deed and note as well as with regard to the dealings of the bank and Mr. Tenney in pursuing the default, the appellants were not prompted to make further inquiry into the matter because of their full and complete reliance upon Tenney and the bank to act in appellants'

est interest. The courts have held that:

Where it is alleged a bank has acted as the financial advisor of one of its depositors for many years and that the latter has relied upon such advice, it is a sufficient allegation that a confidential relationship in regard to financial matters does exist and that, if it is proved, the bank is subject to the rules applying to confidential relations in general. . . . [The bank] must disclose fairly and honestly to the client all of the facts which might be presumed to influence him in regard to his actions.

Stewart v. Phoenix Nat. Bank, 49 Ariz. 34, 64 P.2d 101 (1937).

See also Tone v. Halsey Stuart & Co., 286 Ill. App. 169, 3 N.E. 2d 142 (1936).

It should be further noted that the bank had already entered into a trust deed with the Blodgetts prior to the Raco Car Wash deal. The bank was not only the beneficiary but also the trustee of that trust deed. As such, the bank could not with impunity further encumber the store property without explicit approval from the Blodgetts after a full explanation of the same. As was stated in Holman v. Ryon, 56 F.2d 307 (D.C. Cir. 1932):

A trustee named in deed of trust to secure a loan sustains a fiduciary relationship to the debtor as well as to the creditor.

56 F.2d at 310. The same court in a similar case said further:

The law requires of a trustee in such circumstances that he act fairly toward both parties and in the best interest of each and not for the exclusive benefit of either, because, after he has acted the right of redemption is lost.

Swill v. Ballard, 58 F.2d 517, 519 (D.C. Cir. 1932). This

concept has further been enunciated by other courts. See, e.g.,

Huffman v. Gould, 327 Ill. App. 423, 64 N.E.2d 773 (1946) (the trustee to act "for the best interest of all parties."); Wilson v. Hayes, 193 S.W.2d 107 (Tenn. 1945). See also 55 Am Jur 2d Mortgages §17.

With regard to the Raco Car Wash loan, the trusteeship was passed to respondent Ashworth shortly before the trustee's sale. In that regard Mr. Ashworth had a fiduciary relationship not only to the bank but also to the Blodgetts, as established above.

It is clear, therefore, that the respondent bank, one of its principal officers, respondent Tenney, and the trustee under the Raco Car Wash trust, respondent Ashworth, all had a confidential relationship with the appellants. They were under a duty to act in the best interests of not only the bank but also the Blodgetts. That they failed to do this is clear from the facts of the case.

The Blodgetts were never consulted by the bank that any additional property would be required of them for the purposes of the Raco Car Wash note other than the car wash property itself. The Blodgetts were not the ones seeking the loan but were tied in only because of the lease. The lease specifically said that no other property other than the car wash property was to be subordinated. Nevertheless, and despite the foregoing, the respondents now claim that they felt entitled to include as security additional property, not belonging to Raco or Mrs. Martach, but belonging to the Blodgetts. They did so, neither consulting

the Blodgetts at the time of the signing of the obligations or at any time prior or subsequent thereto. Moreover, the Blodgetts owned other property at the time, but they were not consulted as to whether they would prefer to have such other property put up as additional security, if any at all. It is clear that the respondents were guilty of the grossest kind of misconduct in capriciously and arbitrarily dealing with the property of those to whom they owed a fiduciary duty without their consent or even knowledge.

It should be further noted that as the note continued in default and as the time for the trust deed sale neared, the respondent bank made no effort to inform the Blodgetts that any property other than the car wash property was in jeopardy. Nevertheless, it was clear from the respondent bank's own appraisals that the store property was worth many times over the value of the car wash property. Respondents bank and Tenney had a duty to inform the appellants that it would be foolish to let the property even go to sale.

At the time of the sale Mr. Ashworth had been appointed trustee. As discussed above, he had an obligation to act in the best interests of both the beneficiary and the debtor. Under those circumstances he had a duty to advise the parties that two parcels of land were being sold and that it might be in the best interest of all to sell the parcels separately. At the very least, he had a duty to advise of that possibility. It is clear that he made no such representation to the parties and therefore

was guilty of a breach of his fiduciary duty to the Blodgetts.

POINT IV

THERE IS SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO ESTABLISH THAT THE TRUSTEE'S SALE WAS OF NO VALIDITY

The summary judgment alleges that the sale was conducted in all manners required by law. This is obviously in error as noted in the Statement of Facts above. The notices were not given as required. The property was ambiguously described in the trust deed, making it impossible to determine what was being sold, much less whether there were two parcels instead of one being sold.

The description of the property as sent and posted by Ashworth in the notice of sale is so inaccurate that any potential buyer could not determine from the notice how big the piece is. Only two courses of a metes and bounds description were given in the notice.

If in fact there were two parcels to be sold, respondent Ashworth did not make that declaration to the parties in attendance. Further he did not advise any of the parties, particularly the appellants, whether the parcels could be sold as two separate parcels.

After the bid was made on behalf of respondent Martson, his agent could not meet the qualifications of the trustee's sale notice, namely that the money was to be paid in cash or by

cashier's check the day of sale. Yet the trustee permitted the sale to continue onto the next day in violation of the law on trustee's sales and of the notice of the sale itself. Utah Code Ann. §§57-1-25,-27.

POINT V

THE GROCERY STORE WAS NOT THE SUBJECT OF THE TRUST DEED.

There is not only sufficient evidence to allow this matter to go to trial on the question of the improper manner and form in which the sale was conducted, there is also sufficient evidence that the trust deed covered only the car wash property. This Court in a very recent case held that under the circumstances presented by this case parol evidence can be introduced to indicate the true construction of the deed. Jensen v. Manila Corp. of The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, 565 P.2d 63 (Utah 1977).

It is clear from an analysis of the instant case in a light most favorable to the appellants that neither they nor the bank ever intended the grocery store property to be included in the trust deed. Just as it was a mistake (as the bank now admits) for the bank to have required the Blodgetts to sign as co-signers on the note, so it was a mistake to have shown the grocery store property on the trust deed in the form executed. As discussed above, the bank never discussed the store property

at their real estate meeting. No new appraisal was made of that property. It is was not even noted on any of the car wash loan work papers of the bank. Those work papers discuss only the car wash property. The amount of the loan involved was for \$24,000, which is much less than the bank's own appraised value of the car wash property with improvements of \$38,000. (Thronson Deposition, page 19. Moreover, if additional security was needed, it certainly did not involve the taking of a trust deed on a piece of property with an equity in the Blodgetts in excess of \$100,000. The Blodgetts owned less valuable property which, if it had been necessary and acceptable to the Blodgetts, could have been used. Further, the bank reconveyed the grocery store property to the Blodgetts a few days after the sale, which act contradicts the claim that the store property was sold at the trustee's sale.

In short, there was no reason at all for the respondent bank to have included the grocery store property in the trust deed. All evidence taken in a light favorable to appellants shows that the bank did not intend to include the same.

The trust deed describes a right of ingress and egress over the store property. An interpretation of the trust deed easily permits the construction that the description of the grocery store property was only for the purpose of identifying the property over which the car wash property had rights of ingress and egress. Nothing more. Without the inclusion of the store property description, there is no way of showing the

judgment for ingress and egress.

By reason of the summary judgment granted respondents, there has not been an opportunity to present evidence on these points. The allegation that the grocery store property was not part of that property to have been sold and that the State of Utah and Joe Martsch are constructive trustees of the property was in the complaint and fully supported by evidence sufficient for the lower court to have denied the summary judgment. That the lower court did not deny the summary judgment was in error and this Court should reverse the same and remand the case for a trial on its merits.

POINT VI

THERE IS SUFFICIENT EVIDENCE TO ESTABLISH THAT RESPONDENT MARTSCH WOULD BE UNJUSTLY ENRICHED

It is alleged in the pleadings, and there was no contradictory evidence introduced, that the grocery store property was worth around \$200,000 at the time of the trustee sale. Shortly after the trustee's sale, the car wash property was sold to the State of Utah for \$40,000. As early as the bank appraisal in 1971 the car wash property was appraised at \$38,900. (Thondsen Deposition, Exhibit P-12) Yet the amount bid in at the trustee's sale was only \$30,000.

On the sale to the State of Utah of the car wash property, respondent Martsch made a profit of about \$10,000. To

have received additional property as well would be unconscionable; not only in light of the tremendous value of the grocery store property but also in light of the relationship of Martsch to the Blodgetts.

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