Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Supreme Court Briefs (1965 –)

1978

William T. Blodgett and Florence G. Blodgett, His Wife v. Joe Martsch, Betty Purcell, Aka Betty Purcell Martsch, Doyle Nease, Raco Car Wash Systems, Inc., A Utah Corporation, Wayne A. Ashworth, Trustee, Karl W. Tenney, Valley Bank and Trust Company, A Utah Banking Corporation, First Security Bank of Idaho, N.A., State of Utah, and John Does, 1-10: Brief of Respondent, Wayne A. Ashworth

 $Follow\ this\ and\ additional\ works\ at:\ https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/uofu_sc2$

Charge Courtonmons

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRUSTEE'S DUTY UNDER A TRUST DEED IS TO CARRY OUT THE TRUST IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS THEREOF

The appellants talk of fiduciary relationships and duty to advise, but they lose sight that the principal duty of the trustee under a Trust Deed is to deal with the property in a manner which is fair to both sides. One of the objects of a Trust Deed is to secure an indebtedness. Upon delinquency, the result which occurs is that the subject property will be sold to satisfy the indebtedness.

It should be noted that until his appointment as successor on March 23, 1973, the respondent, Wayne A. Ashworth, was a total stranger to not only the transaction, but most of the parties thereto. Indeed, Mr. Blodgett, in his deposition at page 33

[&]quot;). Mr. Blodgett, have you ever met Mr. Ashworth.

A . Sponsored by the S.J. Quinney Law Library. Funding for digitization provided by the Institute of Museum and Library Services Library Services and Technology Act, administered by the Utah State Library.

Machine-generated OCR, may contain errors.

- Q. Have you ever seen him before?
- A. No.
- Q. Do you recall seeing him in the new Court Building the day of the sale.
- A. I didn't know him, no.
- Q. Have you ever had any business dealing with him other than this transaction?
- A. No."

And at page 34 beginning line 3:

- "Q. And do you have any reason to believe that he has any connection with Valley Bank other than this transaction?
- A. No."

And again at page 36, line 14:

- "Q. Do you claim that Mr. Ashworth took part in any of the negotiations that led up to the execution of the Trust Dec.
 - A. Will you say that again?
- Q. Do you claim that Mr. Ashworth took any part in any of the negotiations that led up to your execution of the ${\tt Trus}^{\rm c}$
- Deed?
- A. No.
- Q. Do you claim that Mr. Ashworth had any relationship WI this transaction prior to being appointed substitute trust
- A. No."
- Mrs. Blodgett, in her deposition, stated at page 21, begins at line 21:
 - Q. Do you have any reason to believe that Mr. Ashword

part in any of the negotiations leading up to the execution of the Trust Deed in 1971?

- A. I have no reason to think that.
- Q. Do you claim that he prepared the note or the Trust Deed?
- A. I don't know.
- Q. Do you have any information from which to base a belief that he was employed by Valley Bank in any capacity?
- A. No, I have no way of knowing who he is employed by.
- Q. So the only transaction you know about is his acting in the capacity of a substitute trustee for Valley Bank?
- A. If that is how he was acting, I don't know anything about that.
- Q. Other than the instant transaction, you have no knowledge or have had any dealing with Mr. Ashworth?
- A. No."

From this evidence, it would be impossible for reasonable minds to conclude that the respondent, Wayne A. Ashworth, was a party to any fraudulent acts, if any there were, which took place in 1971. The most that he would be chargeable with are acts committed by himself or a failure to act where the law imposed a duty on him to act.

In this regard, it should be noted that the respondent, Wayne A. Ashworth, and his attorney at the time had several contacts with the appellants' then attorney, Robert M. Dyer. (See Mr. Blodgett's deposition, page 26, line 10:

- "O. What did you do with the Notice of Sale?
 - A. I can't remember.
 - Q. Did you take that to your attorney?
 - A. I took that to the attorney."

And again, at page 30, line 13, in discussing property description the following should be noted:

- "Q. But you had discussed that with your attorney before:
- A. Yes".

Under this statement of facts, it would be highly presumptuous: the trustee to presume to advise the trustor, who, at that time was represented by counsel.

It is interesting to note, however, that Mr. Dyer's confine over the property descriptions extends not only to his clients' property, but as to the location of the Courthouse. In Mr. Elm' Deposition at page 28, line 18 and following:

- "O. Was your attorney at the sale?
- A. No, he wasn't.
- Q. You were waiting for him to come, weren't you?
- A. Yes, we were.
- Q. But he never did show up?
- A. No, and I asked him about it and he said he had gone is to the County Building, to the old building and so he wast there.
- Q. Did you ever request that the sale be postponed or $m_{\rm c}$ for any time until your attorney got there?
- A. No.

- Q. Did you attempt to stop the sale in any way?
- A. No, I didn't.
- O. Did you say anything about the sale being completed?
- A. No."

POINT II

THE SALE BY THE TRUSTEE WAS IN ALL RESPECTS PROPER AND SHOULD NOT BE DISTURBED BY THE COURTS

The appellants make much of the clerical omission of two calls in the description contained in the Notice of Sale, but ignore the fact that the Notice of Sale also makes reference to the Trust Deed which contains the description of the property, together with the location of its recording in the office of the Salt Lake County Recorder by date, entry number, book and page. Also referred to in the Notice of Sale is the Notice of Default, together with its date of recording, entry number, book and page. Any ambiguity in the description contained in the Notice of Sale could be quickly resolved by resort to the Recorder's Office.

In that regard, few members of the public (and perhaps few members of the Bar) find a metes and bounds description meaningful without recourse to the Recorder's Office.

Further, while Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) 57-1-28[1] makes recitals concerning mailing, personal delivery and publication of the Notice of Default, any mailing and the publication and posting of the Notice of Sale and the conduct of the sale, prima facie evidence of such compliance and conclusive evidence thereof in favor

in favor of bona fide purchasers and encumbrancers for value a without notice, the agreement of the parties found as an exhibit oplaintiffs' Amended Complaint in paragraph 11 makes such reconclusive proof as to the truthfulness thereof. Approved in Sorensen v. Hall, 28P. (2d) 667 (Cal. 1934). Here, the parties have agreed by contract to a provision which is stricter than a state law. They should not now be allowed to complain that the has worked to their disadvantage.

Appellants seek reversal of the Summary Judgment and a trill on the merits in spite of their failure to tender to the Court: amount of the indebtedness. The appellants, who were in substant default in payment of the debt secured by the Trust Deed and attime showed their ability or willingness to pay the obligation are not entitled to set the sale aside on grounds of irregularity of the sale. This is especially so where they have not tenderate amount of indebtedness to the Court and where the Trust Descentains a provision making the recitations in the Trustee's left conclusive proof of the truthfulness thereof. Leonard v. Bank.

America, 60 P. 2D, 325 (Cal. 1936).

Nor should they be allowed to complain that the constable public officer, failed to post in three places within the press, where that, in and of itself, has not prejudiced them. After his they acknowledged receipt of the Notice of Sale and did in fast appear at the sale and permit, without objection, the full office of the sale. In Stevens v. Plumas Eureka Annex Mining Co.

41 P. 2d, 927 (Cal. 1935) the California Supreme Court held that defects in the Notice of Sale under a Trust Deed were waived where the appellants attended the sale and did not object to manner of notice (at page 928).

The appellants now complain that the trustee should have sold the property as two parcels. This procedure is permitted both by paragraph 11 of the contract and by Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended) 57-1-27. Paragraph 11 makes this a matter of discretion on the part of the trustee, while the Statute requires the trustee to follow the direction of the trustor in this regard. Again, it should be noted that the appellants were present at the sale and voiced no objection to the proposed sale of the parcel without a division into its component parts. Golden v. Tomiyasu, 387 P. 2d, 989 (Nevada, 1963)

See Mr. Blodgett's Deposition, page 35, line 16:

- "Q. (By Mr. Sawaya) I suppose what I am really asking is whether you claim that Mr. Ashworth sold any more or any less than that included in the Trust Deed, within the four corners of the Trust Deed.
- A. To what I know now, no.
- Q. Did you ever contact Mr. Ashworth to discuss the description of the properties contained in the documents that you received from him?
- A. No, I didn't."

At the risk of being repetitious, it should be pointed out that at time, the appellants were represented by counsel.

In every foreclosure sale, some element of loss falls upon the trustor. It is a rare case where the sale of the subject property will bring an amount in excess of the indebtedness and there becomes a surplus to pay over to the debtor.

The vast body of case law is to the effect that inadequacy of price at a forced sale, standing alone, will not justify the setting aside of such sale without a showing of fraud. Purther that the fraud must have some connection with the inadequacy of price. See Crowfoot v. Tarman, 305 P. 2d, 56 (Cal, 1957); Pendagon v. Dowse, 1 U. 2nd, 283, 265 P. 2d, 644 (1954); (While appellated these cases, they neglect to point out that both also require a showing of fraud as well); and Stevens v. Plumas, etc., Supratorial fraud, in this state, must be proven by clear and convincing endence. Pace v. Parrish, 247 P.2d, 273 (Utah 1952); and In Resign of Rose 493 P. 2d, 112 (Arizona 1972). The plaintiffs/appellate in their depositions, offered no evidence of any fraudulent confidence allegations of fraudulent conduct as to him must fail.

The allegation that the sale was improperly postponed from September 20, 1973, to September 21, 1973, is not supported by a facts which do not show a postponement of the sale, but rather a delay in its closing. The sale occurred on September 20, 1971 the Courthouse when the property was struck off to the high but It was closed September 21, 1973, shortly after 9:00 a.m. when the Deed was delivered to the purchaser in exchange for a cashier.

theck in the amount of \$30,000.00 (the bid price). This allegation was dealt with by the Supreme Court of the State of California in Sorensen v. Hall, 28 P. 2d, 667 (1934). In that case, a similar allegation was raised, and the Court replied as follows: "... that the sale was not consumated because the actual cash was not paid at the precise time of sale [is] so lacking in merit that a discussion of [it] is unnecessary."

CONCLUSION

There is no evidence before the District Court to show that the respondent, Wayne A. Ashworth, had practiced any fraud against the appellants, nor does the evidence show anything but a substantial compliance with the requirements of the Trust Deed and of Chapter 1, Title 57, Utah Code Annotated (1953 as amended). The record below fully supports the Judgment of the District Court. This Court is respectfully urged to affirm that Judgment.